
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Wednesday, 23 February 2022 
 
 

BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Thursday, 3 March 2022 

beginning at 
6:00 pm 

in the 
Kings Community Church, Upper Northam Road, Hedge End, SO30 4BZ 

 
 
TO: Councillor Tonia Craig (Chair) 
 Councillor Steve Holes (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor David Airey 
Councillor Malcolm Cross 
 

Councillor Adam Manning 
Councillor Jane Rich 
 

 
 

Staff Contacts: Catherine Collins, Democratic Services Officer, 
catherine.collins@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Ross McClean, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3367;  Email: 
ross.mcclean@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and 
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to 
access committee papers. 
 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

3.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 27 January 2022. 
 

4.   Chair's Announcements  
 

5.   Public Participation  
 
You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following email: 
democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is 12pm on 
Wednesday 2 March 2022.  
 
Please let us know if you wish to attend the meeting in person so that we 
can manage numbers. We are still encouraging all those in attendance to 
wear a face covering and take a lateral flow test before attendance. PLEASE 
DO NOT ATTEND IF YOU HAVE ANY COVID-19 SYMPTOMS. 
 
If you are unable to attend, then an officer of the Council can read a written 
statement on your behalf.  
 

6.   Presentation on Planning Guidelines  
 

7.   Planning Application - F/22/92329 - Bailey Cottage, Station Road, Bursledon, 
Southampton, SO31 8AA (Pages 11 - 24) 
 
Retention of use of property, Bailey Cottage, Station Road, Bursledon, 
Southampton, SO31 8AA, as dwelling house (Class C3) or as holiday cottage for 
up to 10 occupants (Sui Generis). (REF: F/22/92329 
 

8.   Planning Application - H/21/91822 - 7 Oakhill Terrace, Bursledon, Southampton, 
SO31 8AS (Pages 25 - 36) 
 
Demolition of garage to create a beauty room outhouse. Single storey rear 
extension and two storey rear extension at 7 Oakhill Terrace, Bursledon, 
Southampton, SO31 8AS. (H/21/91822) 
 

9.   Planning Appeals  
 
The Legal Services Manager to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:- 
 

Brambles, Salterns Lane, Bursledon, Southampton. SO31 8DH 

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk


 

 
Appeal against the Council’s imposition of conditions for construction of 
single storey outbuilding and use of land for athlete training purposes. 
(REF: F/21/90068) 
 
This was a delegated decision. 

 

10.   Planning Application - CS/22/92277 - Hamble Airfield Consultation (Pages 37 - 
64) 
 
This item will begin at 7pm. 
 
Please let us know if you wish to attend the meeting in person so that we 
can manage numbers. We are still encouraging all those in attendance to 
wear a face covering and take a lateral flow test before attendance. PLEASE 
DO NOT ATTEND IF YOU HAVE ANY COVID-19 SYMPTOMS. 
 
This report relates to a consultation request on an application that has been 
submitted to, and will be determined by, Hampshire County Council.  The 
purpose of this report is to set out Eastleigh Borough Council’s response to 
the consultation.   
 
Reference Number: CS/22/92277  
 
(NOTE: HCC application ref. HCC/2021/0787 - Proposed extraction of sand and 
gravel, with restoration to grazing land and recreation using important inert 
restoration materials, the erection of associated plant and infrastructure and the 
creation of a new footpath and access onto Hamble Lane.)  
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Thursday, 9 June 2022 at 6:00 pm 

In the Pilands Wood Centre, Chamberlayne 
Rd, Southampton SO31 8DT 

 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

BURSLEDON, HAMBLE-LE-RICE AND HOUND LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday, 27 January 2022  (6:00 pm – 6:32 pm) 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Craig (Chair); Councillors Holes, Airey and Cross 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Manning and Rich 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

119. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Airey declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 8 
(planning application for Baytree House, 1 Grange Farm, Grange Road, 
Netley Abbey, SO31 5FF) as he knows the applicant’s daughter, and the 
applicant, in a professional capacity. 
 

120. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
Councillor Airey commented on the Public Participation section of the 
minutes. He stated that construction on the footpath had already been 
underway when the concerns were raised so could not be changed. He 
said that the footpath seemed to be working well, but still needed finishing 
and that there had been a problem with a new road sign that had been half 
hidden in bushes but had since been moved and was now attached to a 
streetlight so that it could be seen more clearly. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2021 be 
approved as correct. 
 

121. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
The Chair wished everyone a happy new year and said that she hoped 
they had had a good Christmas. 
 

122. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 

5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 

 
123. REPORT OF THE LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
item 6) that contained recommendations for expenditure from the 
Committee’s developer contributions, capital and revenue budget. 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That the Committee: 
 
(1) Approved the allocation of £112,658 (not including indexation) 

of developer’s contributions from the Serenity development to 
Hedge End Town Council to carry out improvements to the 
play area at Norman Rodaway playing fields. Also, to ask 
Cabinet to support the forward funding of Norman Rodaway 
playing fields as detailed in the report and in line with the 
council’s infrastructure first approach. 

(2) Approved the allocation of £299.40 from the BHH capital 
budget for dragons’ teeth to supply and install dragons’ teeth 
on Castle Road. 

 
(3) Approved the allocation of £220.00 from reserves to install a 

bench at the Hamble Mercury Hub. 
 
(4) Approved the allocation of £1,170 from the bins capital budget 

to install three standard floor mounted Broxap derby 120L dual 
waste bins at Lionheart Way and Grange Road, Netley. 

 
(6) Approved the allocation of £100.00 from the local Grant budget 

for Itchen South District Scout Canoe Centre. 
 
(7) Approved the allocation of £5,000.00 from reserves to 

implement the Pilands Wood community spring clean project 
in April 2022. 

 
(8) Approved the allocation of £3,000.00 from reserves to install 

dragons’ teeth at the Sydney Avenue habitat project. 
 
(9) Approved the allocation of £348.00 from a capital budget to 

install and supply bollards at Priory Road. 
 
(10) Approved the Bursledon, Hamble, and Hound (BHH) Local 

Area Action Plan for 2022/23 shown in Appendix 1 for adoption 
and publication. 

 
(11) Formally approved the allocation of £11,858.00 from reserves 

to replace and install sleepers around the edging of Bursledon 
Station Car Park, which was approved in principle at a 
Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound team meeting. 

6



3 
 

 

 
(12) Formally approved the allocation of £17,000.00 from reserves 

for floodlights, internal LED lights and CCTV upgrade at Roy 
Underdown Pavilion, which was approved in principle at a 
Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound team meeting. 

 
(13) Formally approved the allocation of £1,209 for 2 LED lights 

from reserves for Hound Parish Council office, which was 
approved in principle at a Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and 
Hound team meeting. 

 
(14) Formally approved the allocation of £2,375 for a height barrier 

from reserves to be supplied and fitted at Bursledon Station 
Car Park, which was approved in principle at a Bursledon, 
Hamble-le-Rice and Hound team meeting. 

 
(15) Formally approved the allocation of £800   from reserves for 

two wooden kestrels to be carved by Men’s shed for the 
Bursledon area, which was approved in principle at a 
Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound team meeting. 

 
(16) Formally approved the allocation of £780 from the bins capital 

budget to supply and install two Dual Bins at Estridge Close 
and Norbury Gardens, which was approved in principle at a 
Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound team meeting. 

 
(17) Noted the achievements in the local area supported by the 

LAC, highlighted in appendix 2. 
 
(5) Deferred the decision on the allocation of £500.00 from the 

local grant budget for the Hedge End, West End, Bursledon, 
Hamble & Netley Community Speed Watch to request further 
information.  

 
(NOTE: Councillor Cross declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 5 as - 
in his capacity as a Hamble Parish Councillor - he is a member of a 
neighbourhood watch working group for Hamble Parish Council, which is 
set to discuss Speed Watch.) 
 

124. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
Councillors agreed not to take the presentation of planning guidelines on 
this occasion due to the nature and scale of the development proposed in 
the application. 
 

125. PLANNING APPLICATION - H/21/91963 BAYTREE HOUSE, 1 GRANGE 
FARM, GRANGE ROAD, NETLEY ABBEY, SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 5FF 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Planning Officer (Agenda item 
8) concerning an application for the construction of single storey side and 

7



4 
 

 

single storey rear extension, loft conversion, addition of roof lights and 
alterations to the fenestration to include the provision of an annexe at 
Baytree House, 1 Grange Farm, Grange Road, Netley Abbey, 
Southampton, SO31 5FF (Ref: H/21/91963) 
 
There were no updates to the report. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be GRANTED as set out within the committee report. 
 
(NOTE: Councillor Airey declared a non-pecuniary interest in the 
application as he knows the applicant’s daughter, and the applicant, in a 
professional capacity. He was still able to take part in the debate and vote 
on the item.) 
 

126. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Head of Legal reported:- 
 
(a)      that the following appeals have been lodged:- 
 

CONSTANTIA, 17 CROWSPORT, HAMBLE, SO31 4HG 
 

Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for 
erection of garage/carport (part-retrospective). (Ref: H/21/89749) 

 
This was a delegated decision. 

 
SWAN HOUSE & SWAN COTTAGE, 1, 2, OYSTER QUAY, 
HAMBLE-LE-RICE, SO31 4BQ 

 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for new 
second floor extension to access existing roof terrace after removal 
of existing second floor terrace access structure. (Ref: H/21/90418) 

 
This was a delegated decision. 

  
(b)      that the following appeals have been dismissed:- 
 

44 WOOLWICH CLOSE, BURSLEDON, SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 
8GE  

 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant consent to undertake 
work to a tree protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO). (Ref: 
T/20/88653) 

 
This was a delegated decision. 

 

8



5 
 

 

FAIRPORT HOUSE, LANDS END ROAD, BURSLEDON, 
SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 8DN   
 
Appeal against an enforcement notice issued by Eastleigh Borough 
Council for breach of planning control as alleged in the notice is 
without planning permission the addition of fencing of 0.55 m in 
height affixed to the top of the existing boundary wall. (Ref: 
EA/21/91109) 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



BHH - Bursledon, Hamble and Hound Local Area Committee Thursday 3rd March 
2022  
 
Application Number: F/22/92329 
Case Officer: Alex Webb 
Received Date: 25/01/2022 
Site Address: BAILEY COTTAGE, STATION ROAD, BURSLEDON, 

SOUTHAMPTON, SO31 8AA 

 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Farrell 
Proposal: Retention of use of property as dwellinghouse (Class C3) or 

as holiday cottage for up to 10 occupants (Sui Generis) 
 

Recommendation:  PERMIT 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
01 The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the 

following plans numbered: 001, FP01, Parking Plan 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning 
 

02 The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from the 
date of this decision. 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
Note to Applicant: It is recommended that guidance in set out int the BSI British 
Standards Publication BS8233 “Guidance on sound insulation and noise 
reduction for buildings” is followed to ensure that residents have adequate noise 
insulation and are suitably protected from noise outside. 
 
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (July 2021), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a positive 
approach to the handling of development proposals to achieve, whenever 
possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt with in a 
timely manner. 
 
 

  

11

Agenda Item 7



Report: 
 
1. This application has been referred to Committee by Councillors Craig, Holes and 

Airey.  
 

Proposal 
 

 
2. Retention of use of property as dwellinghouse (Class C3) or as holiday cottage 

for up to 10 occupants (Sui Generis) 
 

3. Due to the number of guests which could accommodate the property at any one 
time and the use of the property as a short-term holiday let in this nature is 
considered a material change of use, planning permission is therefore required. 

 

 
Relevant Planning History 
 

 C/14/74377 - Erection of single storey side extension, following demolition of 
conservatory, utility room & garage, erection of 1.5m high timber fence 
adjacent to Station Road & timber gateway feature (amended description) – 
Permitted 23/06/2014 

 
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality 

 
4. Bailey Cottage is a traditional C.18th, 4-bedroom dwelling. It is located in the 

Countryside, in zone 3 of The Old Bursledon Conservation Area and Special 
Policy Area. It is an unlisted building that makes a positive contribution to the 
area. There are no nearby listed buildings that would be affected by the 
proposal. 
 

5. The area is open and fairly rural in character. The site is surrounded by various 
residential properties ranging in size and style. Bailey Cottage is situated in a 
gap between Station Hill (to the west of the site) and the entrance to and car 
park of Bursledon Station (to the north and east). To the south of the site is a 
detached two storey dwelling, Railway Cottage.  
 

6. Access to the site is via the car park of Bursledon Station along the site’s 
eastern boundary and there is a paved parking area to the north of the site with 
capacity for up to 3 cars. 
 

7. The west boundary comprises a retaining wall and willow panel fence of 1.5m 
high with supporting concrete posts. The eastern boundary comprises a mature 
and dense hedge of approx. 2m in height. 
 

8. The site itself is fairly level. Station Road rises gently as it moves towards 
Station Hill, north west of the application site, which is at a higher ground level.  

 
  

12



Representations Received 

 
Railway Cottage:  

 
9. Support for the following reasons: 

 

 next door to Bailey Cottage  

 no issues with any of the guests staying  

 guests have not left any rubbish and park appropriately in designated spaces 
on site.  

 noise limited to general conversation at reasonable hours of the day 

 no loud music or noise late at night.  

 not found noise from the guests to be intrusive, overall they have been quite 
respectful.  

 fully support the continued use of Bailey Cottage as a holiday let. 
 

 
Consultation Responses 
 
Bursledon Parish Council: 
 

 
10. Object on the following grounds 

 

 Insufficient and inadequate parking provision 

 The Council is concerned parking will be displaced onto neighbouring roads 
 

 
Built Heritage Consultant: 
 
11. This application is purely for a part change of use, still all domestic and not 

involving any change to the building or it’s setting.  The fact that the building is 
going to continue to be occupied, at least most of the time, is better for it than 
being left empty and suffering as a consequence.  
 

12. In the light of this lack of material change from a building point of view, there is 
no objection. 

 
 
Environmental Health: 

 
13. No objection however the applicant has been advised to provide for noise 

insulation due to adverse noise from the M27 and install means of ventilation 
and thermals other than opening windows. For a holiday cottage, occupation is 
temporary and of choice.   On balance, if users found they were dissatisfied with 
a holiday stay, they would not use the accommodation again. 
 

  

13



Highways 
 

14. No objection. Whilst parking may be below the standard required for the 
dwelling, particularly when utilised as a holiday let (EBC to confirm the parking 
quantum as Local Parking Authority), it is noted that the site sits adjacent to a 
public / rail station car park. It is not unreasonable to assume that short term 
users can utilise these facilities if required. 
 

Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site 
 

 Outside Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 

 Within Designated Conservation Area (Old Bursledon) – Zone 3 

 200m buffer of SAC, SPA, Ramsar  

 Special Protection Area-recreational disturbance zone  

 Old Bursledon Special Policy Area   

 Upcott, Station Road – Grade II Listed Building 
 
Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) Saved Policies: 
 

 1.CO (Countryside Protection); 

 32.ES (Pollution control); 

 59.BE (Design criteria); 

 104.T (Off-highway parking); 

 159.TA (Sustainable Tourism proposals) 

 160.TA (Tourism facilities in the Countryside) 

 176.LB (Enabling Development) 

 179.LB (Old Bursledon Special Policy Area) 
 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014 

 
 

15. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for examination in 
July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient housing was being 
provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  While this has not been 
withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can therefore be considered 
to have extremely limited weight in the determination of this application. 
 

Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 
 
 

16. The 2016-2036 Local Plan was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on 31st 
October 2018 and the examination hearings concluded in January 2020. The 
Council received the Inspector’s post-Hearing advice on 1 April 2020.  The 
Council is progressing with modifications to the Local Plan to enable its 
adoption, anticipated mid-2022.  Given the status of the Emerging Plan, it is 

14



considered that significant weight can be attributed to it. The most relevant 
policies are: 

 
Strategic policies: 

 S1 (Sustainable Development); 

 S2 (Promotion of New Development); 

 S3 (Housing Locations); 

 S7 (New Development in the Countryside); 

 S12 (Transport Infrastructure). 
 

Development Management policies: 

 DM1 (General Development Criteria); 

 DM8 (Pollution); 

 DM13 (Transport); 

 DM14 (Car Parking); 

 DM26 (Creating a Mix of Housing); 
 

 
Supplementary Planning Documents 
 
- Quality Places (November 2011); 
- Residential Parking Standards (January 2009); 
- Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Character Area Appraisal (January 2008) 
-  Old Bursledon Conservation Area and Management Proposals (February 2012) 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 
 

 
17. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ or the 

‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the 
determination of planning applications. The National Planning Policy Framework 
(the ‘NPPF’ or the ‘Framework’) states that (as required by statute) applications 
for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise and sets 
out a general presumption in favour of sustainable development unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  
 

18. Three dimensions of sustainability are to be sought jointly: economic (supporting 
economy and ensuring land availability); social (providing housing, creating high 
quality environment with accessible local services); and environmental 
(contributing to, protecting and enhancing natural, built and historic 
environment) whilst local circumstances should also be taken into account, so 
that development responds to the different opportunities for achieving 
sustainable development in different areas. 

 
19. In the instance that a proposal would not preserve or enhance the Conservation 

Area then it must be perceived to have a public benefit. Referring to paragraphs 
199 and 200 of the National Planning Policy Framework, proposals that stand to 
potentially harm a designated heritage asset, in this case the Old Bursledon 

15



Conservation Area, should be refused unless a public benefit can be identified 
which would outweigh any harm the proposal presents. Where a development 
proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a 
designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public 
benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum 
viable use. 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance  

 
20. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the provisions 

and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the consideration and 
determination of planning applications.  
 

Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative Background 
 

21. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 38(6) of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local Planning 
Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
Development Plan comprises the Saved Policies of the Eastleigh Borough Local 
Plan Review 2001-2011 and the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 
(which is not applicable in this case).  The NPPF and the Planning Practice 
Guidance constitute material considerations of significant weight. 
 

22. The site also lies within a Conservation Area and Section 71(1) of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states:  

 
47.“In the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in the 
Conservation Area of any powers (under the Planning Acts), special attention 
shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or 
appearance of that area”. 

 
Principle: 
 
23. This is a proposal for a mixed use to allow either a dwellinghouse (C3) or a 

short-term holiday cottage for up to 10 people (Sui Generis). The residential use 
is already established and therefore the principle of a dwellinghouse is 
considered acceptable. 
 

24. The short-term holiday cottage is a form of tourism in the countryside. ‘Saved’ 
local plan policies 159.TA, 160.TA and emerging policy S7 supports tourism 
development in the countryside that promote cultural tourism (i.e. local heritage 
and distinctiveness) and the re-use of buildings in the countryside for tourist 
uses. The change of use of this building to such a mixed use would therefore be 
in accordance with policy.  

 
25. The description of the proposal includes a limitation on the number of people 

that could occupy the dwelling as a holiday cottage, which is no more than 10, 
therefore the intensity of use would be controlled by virtue of this description.  

 

16



Sustainable Development: 
 
26. Section 2 of the NPPF (July 2021) states that the purpose of the planning 

system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development, which 
can be summarised as meeting the needs of the present without compromising 
the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 
 

27. Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system has three 
overarching objectives – economic, social and environmental (which are 
interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways) that should 
be delivered through the preparation and implementation of plans and the 
application of the policies in the Framework. 
 

28. Planning policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding 
development towards sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take local 
circumstances into account, to reflect the character, needs and opportunities of 
each area. 

 
29. Each of the three dimensions of sustainable development are considered below. 

National legislation and guidance, together with local policy ensure that all 
planning applications are tested for their resilience to and impact on the 
Environment. Details elsewhere in this report set out the Climate Change and 
Environmental implications of this application and their proposed mitigations. 
 

Economic Sustainability: 

 
30. Section 2 of the NPPF, when discussing economic sustainability, seeks to ‘help 

build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by ensuring that sufficient 
land of the right types is available in the right places and at the right time to 
support growth, innovation and improved productivity; and by identifying and 
coordinating the provision of infrastructure’.  
 

31. Paragraphs 84 and 85 of section 6 ‘Building a strong, competitive economy’ set 
out how planning policies and decisions should enable ‘sustainable rural tourism 
and leisure developments which respect the character of the countryside’ and 
how “it will be important to ensure that development is sensitive to its 
surroundings, does not have an unacceptable impact on local roads and exploits 
any opportunities to make a location more sustainable (for example by 
improving the scope for access on foot, by cycling or by public transport). The 
use of previously developed land, and sites that are physically well-related to 
existing settlements, should be encouraged where suitable opportunities exist”. 
 

32. On balance, given the sustainable location of this site and the on-site parking 
provision, it is considered that there is an economic benefit to the proposed 
scheme and therefore it is considered economically sustainable. 

 
  

17



Social Sustainability: 

 
33. Paragraph 8 of the NPPF sets out the social objective to support ‘strong, vibrant 

and healthy communities… with accessible services and open spaces that 
reflect current and future needs and support communities’ health, social and 
cultural well-being’  

 
34. Chapter 15 of the 2021 NPPF ‘Conserving and enhancing the natural 

environment’ states that Planning policies and decisions should also ensure that 
new development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely 
effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and 
the natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the 
wider area to impacts that could arise from the development.  

 
35. On balance, it is considered that there is a social benefit to the proposed 

scheme as it would facilitate access to culture and heritage thus support cultural 
well-being and therefore is considered socially sustainable. 

 
Environmental Sustainability: 

 
36. There are a number of different components to Environmental Sustainability, 

including consideration of site-specific planning matters and the impacts of the 
development on its surroundings, which are considered below under the 
relevant subheadings.  
 

Design and Appearance: 

 
37. Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan requires development to take full and proper 

account of the context of the site including the character and appearance of the 
locality and be appropriate in mass, scale, materials, layout, design and siting.  
It also requires development to make the most efficient use of land and 
incorporate an appropriate mix of dwelling type and land-use where appropriate. 
Development should provide a high standard of landscape design, have a 
satisfactory means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclist and pedestrians, 
make provision for refuse and cycle storage and avoid unduly impacting on 
neighbouring uses through overlooking, loss of light, loss of outlook, noise and 
fumes. 
 

38. The proposal would not result in any internal or external changes to the property 
and it would remain a 4-bed unit of accommodation. Criteria iii) of policy 59.BE 
sets out the need to retain a mix of dwelling types and the proposed mixed use 
of dwelling house (C3) and short-term holiday cottage for up to 10 people (Sui 
Generis) would allow for either. The proposal would therefore retain the 
residential nature and use of the property in part. It is proposed to condition the 
planning permission so that if the use as a holiday cottage were to cease, the 
property would return to a dwellinghouse. This would give the Council control 
over any future use and ensure the residential use is not lost.  

 

18



Access, Parking and Transport Matters: 

 
39. There are 3 on-site parking spaces to the north of the application site as shown 

on the submitted Parking Plan. The parking capacity would therefore meet the 
standards as set out in the Council’s residential parking standards SPD for 
residential use.  The highway officer has confirmed that the surrounding area is 
covered by TROs to prevent roadside parking. 
 

40. In terms of EBC standards for a holiday cottage, there are no specific standards 
for such a use. Guidance in the former Hampshire Parking Strategy and 
Standards (2002) sets out parking standards for Hotels/Motels/Guest 
Houses/Boarding Houses. As the site is so close to the train station and within 
walking distance of the A27 where there are regular bus services, it is in a highly 
accessible location and therefore the permitted standard is 50% of the maximum 
permitted standard which is 1 space per 2 bedrooms.  Therefore, the site can 
also provide the 2 spaces required by that standard. 
 

Noise and Air Quality: 

 
41. Environmental Health have raised no objection to the scheme but have advised 

the applicants to provide for noise insulation due to adverse noise from the M27 
and install means of ventilation and thermals other than opening windows. The 
applicant has confirmed no modifications to provide alternative means of 
ventilation to the building are proposed as the proposed use is not more noise 
sensitive than the established residential use and it is not considered that any 
additional harm arises from the use of the building for holiday let in this 
respect.  The applicant has been alerted to the provisions of British Standard 
BS8233 “Guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings” and 
this would be added as an informative to the decision notice. 
 

42. The occupants of the neighbouring property, Railway Cottage have written in 
supporting the application. 

 
43. Overall, Human health relating to noise and air quality have been considered 

and no significant adverse effects are likely. The traffic and air quality impacts or 
any other possible impacts are also not considered significantly harmful to 
human health. 

 
Impacts on the Conservation Area and Special Policy Area: 

 
44. The property is identified with a photograph as being in Character Zone 3 – 

Station Road and Station Hill in the Old Bursledon Conservation Area Appraisal 
and Management Proposals SPD. The proposal would not result in any external 
changes to the property and so would not have a harmful impact on the Special 
Policy Area 

 

45. Policy 179.LB states that to protect the special loose-knit character of Old 
Bursledon and to ensure the retention of existing open areas, further 

19



development will be refused within the special policy area except for changes of 
use, provided that they respect and enhance the character of the Special Policy 
Area. By virtue of the proposed nature of the change of use, it is considered to 
respect and enhance the character of the Special Policy Area. 

 
Other Matters: 

 
46. The proposal is not considered to have an adverse impact upon the surrounding 

amenities, landscape, ecology, nitrates impact or drainage as no physical 
development is proposed, this application solely relates to the change of use of 
an existing dwelling. 
 

Climate Impact and Sustainability 
 

47. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and Environmental 
Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things, to: (a) put in place 
measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and functions achieve carbon 
neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim for all projects and services 
delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030; (c) ensure that 
the Council’s procurement policy recognises carbon neutrality as one of its 
primary considerations; and (d) recognise the urgency of action to mitigate and 
adapt to climate change in every decision taken by the Council. This is 
underpinned by the Climate and Environment Emergency Strategy 2020–2030 
and the supporting Climate and Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update 
June 2020. 
 

48. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency 
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero. It is 
not part of development plan or emerging plan policy, but it is a material 
consideration to be considered alongside all other material considerations. The 
need to support the economy is part of the Strategic Environmental Assessment 
for the Emerging Local Plan, as is an assessment of climate impacts.  

 
49. The NPPF, Saved Policies 34.ES and 37.ES of the local plan, Draft Policies S1, 

DM2 and DM3 of the Emerging local plan and energy and water elements of the 
adopted Environmentally Sustainable Development SPD require development to 
be sustainable in terms of resource use, climate change and energy use. When 
considering the impact of climate change, the proposed development is not 
expected to be directly impacted by the potential effects of climate change and 
is expected to have a negligible impact on the climate because of the 
development or its use. 

 
 
Equalities Implications: 

 
 

50. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. 
Section149 states: - 
 

20



- A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to: 

 
a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 

that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
c. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

51. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the equality 
duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It is considered 
that this application does not raise any equality implications. 
 

 
Conclusion 

 
 
52. For the reasons given above, it is considered that the change of use can be 

permitted, subject to conditions. 
 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



Wayside

Cross Trees

Boat

12

1 t
o 3

32

Alteza Swan Court

Yard

14

Greengate

31

7 to
 9

27

House

Croft
House

C
ha

rlw
oo

d

Cottage
Bailey

Cottage

C
ro

ss
fie

ld

Lych Gate

2

Greywell

Th
e

Loxwood

Gate

Bursledon

Ta
ne

ra

Mole

Vine

C
ot

t
Su

ns
hi

ne

29

Bu
ng

al
ow

Railway Cottage

2

Cott

Upcott

C
ha

rlt
on

Cottage

Dale Cott

Niwel

Lych

1

Rosewood

D
ev

on
ia

H
ill

C
ot

ta
g e

28

El Sub Sta

The

Holmlea

Calmore

Ho
us

e

Cottage

Cottage

Tree
Yew

W
oo

ds
id

e

30

C
ot

ta
ge

Woodbine

D
or

m
y

Elm Dale

Station

Boxwood

Bredicot

St Leonard's Church

Th
e

Boat House

Ewers

4 t
o 6

26

HouseRiveroak 25

Bursledon

Slipway

Slipway

Slipway

Graveyard

Ca
r P

ar
k

Issues

MP 0.
75

CHURCH

JA
RV

IS
 F

IE
LD

S

STATION

LANE
ROAD

ROAD

ST
AT

IO
N

ST
AT

IO
N

 H
IL

L

CHURCH LANE

Ps

Ps

Pontoons

FB

Stages

Landing

Pontoons

FB

War
Meml

FB

19.2m

4.3m

16.5m

Mud

Mud

Mud

F/22/92329

21/02/2022

Bailey Cottage, Station Road

Date:

Address:

Scale:  1:1250

Bursledon Southampton SO31 8AA

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

23



This page is intentionally left blank



BHH – Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee - 3 
March 2022 
 
Application Number: H/21/91822 
Case Officer: Summer Sharpe 
Received Date: 29 October 2021 
Site Address: 7 Oakhill Terrace, Oakhill, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 

8AS 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs McClory-Cuthbertson 
Proposal: Demolition of garage to create a beauty room outhouse. 

Single storey rear extension and two storey rear extension. 
 

Recommendation:  Permit 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years from 
the date of this decision. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance 
with the following plans numbered: 

 Existing Floor Plans & Elevations: 100 

 Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations: 101 

 Location & Block Plan: 102 

 Existing Garage: 102 

 Beauty Room Floor Plan & Elevations: 103 

 Location & Block Plan 104 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.  
 
3. The salon use hereby permitted shall only operate in the approved 
outbuilding between the hours of: 
9:30-14:30 - Tuesday, Wednesday & Friday,  
9:30-18:30 - Thursday,  
and not at all on Mondays, Saturdays or Sundays.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers.  
 
4. The outbuilding hereby approved shall be used only for purposes of a 
Beauty Salon within Sui Generis use of the schedule to the Town and Country 
Planning [Use Classes] Order 1987, [or in any provision equivalent to that 
Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 
without modification] and for no other purposes. 

25

Agenda Item 8



 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and local amenity. 
 
5. The hardstanding area to the frontage of the dwellinghouse shall be 
reserved for the use as customer car parking for the approved salon during the 
hours of operation of the salon. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.  
 
6. The salon use hereby permitted shall only operate with one employer and 
one customer at one time.   
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers, and in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 
7. The materials to be used shall comprise: 

 The outbuilding: anthracite cedar cladding 

 The extensions: materials to match the host dwellinghouse 
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the 
amenities of the area.  
 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1) Note to Applicant 
In the unlikely event that a bat is found, works should stop immediately and 
Natural England informed: https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/im-working-on-a-
building-with-bats/ive-found-a-bat-during-works 
 
2) Note to Applicant 
Please review Southern Waters Comments in detail online and contact: 
SouthernWaterPlanning@southernwater.co.uk when and/or where necessary. 
 
3) Note to Applicant 
Please be aware that your property is understood to have a restrictive 
covenant which prevents any additions or alterations to the property without 
consent of the Council, this is in addition to planning permission consent.   
You will therefore need to contact Asset Management directly to obtain their 
consent prior to proceeding with the approved planning application under 
application no: H/21/91822. 
 
1. Report: 
 
This application has been referred to Committee by Councillor Holes, Craig, 
Airey and Rich.  
 
2. Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality 
 
3. The application site comprises a two-storey semi-detached dwellinghouse 
located to the north-east of the A27. The dwellinghouse itself is set back from 

26

https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/im-working-on-a-building-with-bats/ive-found-a-bat-during-works
https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/im-working-on-a-building-with-bats/ive-found-a-bat-during-works
mailto:SouthernWaterPlanning@southernwater.co.uk


the road by hardstanding providing vehicular parking provisions to the 
frontage. The dwellinghouse has an ‘L-shaped’ footprint and is constructed of 
facing brick work at ground floor level, light render at first floor level, with a 
tiled roof and white upvc fenestration, including a bow bay window at ground 
floor level. To the north-west of the dwellinghouse is access (wide enough for 
a vehicle) to the rear garden, which is bound by a low-level brick wall, and an 
existing garage, set back within the rear garden. To the eastern boundary 
there is some close board fencing. Generally, there is limited/ low-level 
boundary treatment.  
 
4. The surrounding area predominantly comprises residential dwellinghouses. 
To the east are 1-6 Oakhill Terrace which are fairly uniform in terms of their 
appearance fronting the A27. To the north-west is a detached dwellinghouse, 
set back within its site. To the south are other detached and semi-detached 
two-storey dwellinghouses. Throughout the wider surroundings it is noted that 
the road has an incline from Portsmouth Road to Dodwell Lane.  
 
5. Description of Application 
 
6. The application proposes the demolition of garage to create a beauty room. 
The existing garage is located tight to the north-western boundary, set back 
from the host dwellinghouse. The existing garage has a footprint of approx. 6m 
by 3.5m, with a flat roofed height of approx. 2.3m. The proposed beauty room 
would be situated in the same location and would have an enlarged footprint of 
approx. 8m by 3.6m with a mono-pitched roof; the highest point would 
measure 3m and the lowest 2.4m. This is proposed to be finished in anthracite 
cedar cladding. The agent and applicant have also confirmed that Mrs 
McClory-Cuthbertson would be the sole worker, whereby they would anticipate 
between 3 – 4 customers per day, during the operating hours, which comprise:  
Monday, Saturday & Sunday: Closed 
Tuesday, Wednesday & Friday: 9:30-14:30  
Thursday 9:30-18:30.  
 
7. The application also proposes a single storey side/ rear extension and two-
storey rear extension. The proposed single storey extension would ‘square off’ 
the host dwellinghouse, projecting approx. 3.8m from the recessed rear 
elevation. This would have a width of approx. 2.2m, and a flat roof height of 
approx. 3m. The proposed two-storey rear extension would be situated above 
the existing single storey outshot (following the same footprint) of approx. 
3.8m by 3.5m. The prosed two-storey rear extension would have a hipped roof 
with eaves measuring approx. 5m, and an overall height of approx. 6.8m. This 
is proposed to be finished in materials to match the host dwellinghouse.  
 
8. Relevant Planning History 
 
9. None. 
 
10. Representations Received 
 
11. 1 no. neighbour objection  

27



Concerns relating to customer parking for the proposed beauty room.  
 
12. Consultation Responses 
 
13. Bursledon Parish Council:  
Objection – the proposed application will have a detrimental impact on the 
neighbouring property and that there is inadequate parking associated with the 
proposed business use which will disperse vehicles on to other areas.  
 
14. Hampshire County Council Highways:  
Access: vehicle and pedestrian access is unchanged by the proposals, which 
is acceptable.  
Trip rates & Parking: the specified 3-4 customers per day would generate 2no. 
client parking spaces at any one time, combined with the residential 
requirements of 2no. spaces for a 3no. bedroom dwelling. 4no. parking spaces 
could be accommodated as shown on the submitted plans.  
 
15. EBC Ecologist: 
No objection. 
In the unlikely event that a bat is found should permission be granted, works 
should stop immediately and Natural England informed: 
https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/im-working-on-a-building-with-bats/ive-found-a-
bat-during-works 
 
16. EBC Arboriculturalist:  
No objection. 
 
17. EBC Environmental Health: 
No comment.  
 
18. Southern Water:  
Comments – advising upon foul sewers.  
 
19. Policy Context and Designations Applicable to Site 
 

 Within Built-up Area Boundary 

 Within Established Residential Area 
 
20. Development Plan Saved Policies and Emerging Local Plan Policies 
 
21. Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) Saved Policies: 
 

 25.NC (Biodiversity); 

 59.BE (Design criteria); 

 104.T (Off-highway parking); 
 
22. Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011 - 2029, July 2014 
 
23. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for 
examination in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient housing 

28

https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/im-working-on-a-building-with-bats/ive-found-a-bat-during-works
https://www.bats.org.uk/advice/im-working-on-a-building-with-bats/ive-found-a-bat-during-works


was being provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  While this has not 
been withdrawn and remains a material consideration, it can therefore be 
considered to have extremely limited weight in the determination of this 
application. 
 
24. Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 
 
25. The 2016-2036 Local Plan was submitted by the Council to the Planning 
Inspectorate on 31st October 2018 with hearings in public having commenced 
in November 2019 and concluded in early 2020. The Council subsequently 
received the Inspector’s feedback and recommended action points on the plan 
in April and May 2020. On 25 June 2020, the Council’s Cabinet resolved to 
progress the examination on the basis of the main modifications outlined in the 
Inspector’s letter and action points and/or any other main modifications which 
may be necessary.  
 
26. The Council’s Planning Policy Team subsequently prepared further 
evidence and drafted the main modifications in response to each of the 
Inspector’s letters and points. The Inspector also held an additional hearing in 
January 2021 in relation to Mercury Marina. Following on from this, the 
Inspector has now finalised the main modifications for public consultation and 
the Council has also prepared modifications to the policies map and proposed 
additional modifications. A report of the Planning Policy Senior Specialist was 
considered at Cabinet and Full Council on 27 May 2021 which recommended 
approval of the modifications proposed for public consultation.  
 
27. Consultation on the Main Modifications took place between 8 June 2021 
and 21 July 2021. Adoption of the plan is anticipated summer 2022. It is 
considered that overall considerable weight can be attributed to it. The most 
relevant policies are:  
 

Strategic policies: 

 S1 (Sustainable Development); 

 S2 (Promotion of New Development); 
 

Development Management policies: 

 DM1 (General Development Criteria); 

 DM2 (Environmentally Sustainable Development); 

 DM11 (Nature Conservation);  

 DM14 (Car Parking); 
 
28. Supplementary Planning Documents 
 

 Quality Places (November 2011); 

 Residential Parking Standards (January 2009); 
 
29. National Planning Policy Framework 
 

29



30. At national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is a 
material consideration of significant weight in the determination of planning 
applications.  
 
31. National Planning Practice Guidance  
 
32. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the 
provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the 
consideration and determination of planning applications.  
 
33. Assessment of Proposal: Development Plan and / or Legislative 
Background 
 
34. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a Local 
Planning Authority determining an application to do so in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.   
 
35. The Development Plan comprises the Saved Policies of the Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and the Hampshire Minerals and 
Waste Plan 2013 (which is not applicable in this case).  The NPPF and the 
Planning Practice Guidance constitute material considerations of significant 
weight. 
 
36. Principle: 
 
37. The application site falls within the urban edge, whereby alterations or 
extensions to, or within the curtilage of residential dwellinghouses are 
considered to be acceptable in principle, however, would be subject to the 
following considerations.  
 
38. Design and Appearance: 
 
39. Saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-
2011), and Draft Policy DM1 of the submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
(2016-2036) stipulate that all new development should respect the 
character and appearance of urban areas, take full and proper account of 
the context of the site including the character, appearance and land uses of 
the locality or neighbouring, and be compatible in terms of mass, scale, 
layout density, design and siting. 
 
40. The application proposes the demolition of garage to create a beauty 
room outhouse. Single storey rear extension and two storey rear extension. 
Therefore, the assessment will be broken into two parts.  
 
41. The existing garage would be demolished and replaced by an 
outbuilding in the same location, albeit with a larger footprint. This would be 
finished in anthracite cedar cladding, which is considered to result in an 
improved appearance when compared to the existing. Given the existing 
garage, the proposed outbuilding is not considered to appear out of context, 

30



further it is noted that there are other examples of outbuildings within the 
immediate surroundings. 
 
42. The proposed single storey and two-storey rear extensions are 
considered to appear as subservient additions when read in conjunction 
with the host dwelling. The single storey extension has modest dimensions 
and would seek to ‘square-off’ the ground floor of the host dwelling. The 
proposed two-storey extension would be set in from the eastern boundary 
and set down from the roof of the host dwellinghouse, thus appearing 
appropriate with specific regard to its overall scale. Furthermore, it is noted 
that this two-storey element would reflect existing examples within the 
immediate surroundings, namely no.6 Oakhill Terrace. For which planning 
permission for a two-storey rear extension was granted in July 1998 under 
planning application referenced Z/35374/000/00. Whilst it is noted that the 
two-storey element could be visible from public vantage points, owed to its 
subservient dimensions and use of matching materials the proposal would 
be considered acceptable.  
 
43. To conclude, the proposed outbuilding, single storey rear/ side 
extension, and two-storey rear extension are considered to be acceptable, 
in accordance with the abovementioned policies and the contents of the 
NPPF.  
 
44. Access, Parking and Highways Matters: 
 
45. Saved Policy 104.T of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-
2011), and Draft Policy DM14 of the submitted Eastleigh Borough Local 
Plan (2016-2036) require residential development to provide off-highway 
parking which is adequate in terms of highway safety / traffic management. 
The Residential Parking SPD sets out the relevant parking provisions for 
dwellinghouses, which are dependent upon the amount of bedrooms.  
 
46. The dwellinghouse currently has 3 no. bedrooms, thus requiring 2 no. 
off-street parking provisions, as set out within the SPD. At the date of the 
site visit (13 December 2021) it was noted that to the frontage there was 
hardstanding for the provision of vehicles. Furthermore, there was a 
driveway located to the northern side of the host dwellinghouse, whereby 
there was a garage set back within the site (approx. 10m).  
 
47. The proposals would also result in the loss of the garage and provision 
of a beauty room, which would generate parking requirements. Highways 
have advised that 2 no. parking spaces would be required for the proposed 
beauty salon. The proposal would not create any additional bedrooms, and 
therefore the 2 no. off-street parking provisions for the dwellinghouse would 
remain.  
 
48. “Location & Block Plan 104” was submitted which showed that there 
was sufficient parking for 4no. vehicles to the northern side of the 
dwellinghouse (along the driveway) and 2no. vehicular parking provisions to 
the frontage of the dwellinghouse. As such, it is considered that there are 

31



sufficient parking provisions on site to facilitate the host dwellinghouse and 
the proposed beauty salon usage. In order for the parking provisions to 
work, in practice, it is recommended that the vehicular parking provisions to 
the frontage of the dwellinghouse be reserved for customer parking, and 
parking provisions along the driveway be used by the occupiers of the 
dwellinghouse. It is recommended that the parking provisions be secured 
via condition. 
 
49. It is noted that the Parish Council and Councillors requesting the 
application to Committee raised concerns relating to Highways matters. 
These specific concerns have been considered by Hampshire County 
Council Highways Officer, whereby the following response has been 
provided: there would be space in front of the dwelling which could be used 
as an informal turning space. However, were this to be removed in the 
future, consideration of reversing movements either onto or off of the site 
would need to be considered. Whilst it is noted that this is not an ideal 
movement, owed to the amount clients utilising the beauty salon per day, it 
is not considered that this would be excessive. This is combined with the 
access being within a 40mph speed zone, a very straight section of 
highway with excellent visibility and the fact the existing dwelling, as well as 
the adjacent 6 houses also make the same reversing movements when 
accessing or egressing their properties without known incident would, in 
their professional opinion, make it difficult to justify an object on highway 
safety grounds.  
As such, and to conclude, the proposals would therefore be considered 
acceptable in this regard.  
 
50. Ecology and Trees: 
 
51. Saved Policy 25.NC of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-
2011), and Draft Policy DM11 of the submitted Eastleigh Borough Local 
Plan (2016-2036) stipulate that the Borough Council will work with statutory 
and voluntary agencies and developers to; protect, conserve and enhance 
areas subject to international, national and local nature conservation 
designations, and promote the net gain of biodiversity on all sites through 
the protection, enhancement and connection of existing provisions and new 
habitats and features compatible with the native biodiversity characteristics 
of the Borough.  
 

52. The Council’s Ecologist has been consulted as part of this application. 
They note that there are some records of Pipistrelles within 160m north of 
the application site (along Dodwell Lane). They have reviewed the existing 
garage, which is an open fronted structure with corrugated metal roof and 
have concluded that this would not be suitable for use by protected species. 
Furthermore, they note that the proposed extensions will affect a small part 
of the existing roof, however given the good condition of the existing roof 
this is unlikely to be used by protected species. Their comments ultimately 
conclude with no objection, however an informative would be recommended 
to be attached to a positive decision to advise that if any bats/ protected 
species are found, works should cease immediately, and Natural England 

32



be informed. 
 
53. Residential Amenity: 
 
54. Saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-
2011), and Draft Policy DM1 of the submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
(2016-2036) amongst other matters, stipulate that all new development 
should not have an unacceptable impact upon residential amenities of both 
new and existing residents. 
 
55. As per the design section of this report, the assessment of the impact 
upon the neighbouring amenities will separated into two parts.  
 
56. The garage would be demolished and replaced by an outbuilding within 
the same location. The proposed outbuilding would increase the length 
along the shared boundary from 6m to 8m. There would also be an 
increase in the overall roof form/ height. Whilst it is acknowledged that the 
proposal would be larger than the existing garage, given this existing 
relationship, combined with the proposal which is situated to the frontage of 
the neighbouring property to the north-west, this element of the proposal is 
not considered to have an adversely harmful impact upon the amenities of 
this neighbouring property.  
 
57. In terms of the proposed usage, it is noted that a beauty salon would 
generate more comings and goings. The applicant has advised that they 
will be the sole worker, with an anticipated amount of 3-4 customers per 
day (during the proposed operating hours stated above). Whilst generating 
additional comings and goings owed to the modest nature of the proposal 
and operating hours, it is not considered that this would have a 
detrimentally harmful impact upon the amenities of the neighbouring 
properties. It is also recommended that the operating hours be conditioned 
to ensure that the amenities of the neighbouring properties would not be 
adversely impacted upon.  
 
58. The proposed single storey rear extension would be situated tight to the 
shared eastern boundary with no.6 Oakhill Terrace. Whilst it is 
acknowledged that the proposal would impact upon the amenities of this 
neighbouring property, owed to the overall height and depth dimensions, it 
is not considered that this would have a detrimentally harmful impact upon 
the amenities of this neighbouring property, thus would not warrant reason 
for refusal.  
 
59. The proposed two-storey rear extension would be set in from the shared 
eastern boundary and would reflect a similar design to the existing example 
at no.6 Oakhill Terrace. It would therefore be considered that this element 
would not have an adverse impact upon the amenities of the neighbouring 
property to the east. Furthermore, owed to the overall dimensions and 
separation distance to the neighbouring property to the north-west, the 
proposal is not considered to have an adverse impact upon the amenities of 
this neighbouring property.  

33



 
60. To conclude, the proposed outbuilding, single storey rear/ side 
extension, and two-storey rear extension are considered to be acceptable, 
in accordance with the abovementioned policies and the contents of the 
NPPF. 
 
61. Climate Impact and Sustainability 
 
62. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and 
Environmental Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things, to: 
(a) put in place measures to ensure the Council’s own operations and 
functions achieve carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with partners to aim 
for all projects and services delivered in the Borough to achieve carbon 
neutrality by 2030; (c) ensure that the Council’s procurement policy 
recognises carbon neutrality as one of its primary considerations; and (d) 
recognise the urgency of action to mitigate and adapt to climate change in 
every decision taken by the Council. This is underpinned by the Climate 
and Environment Emergency Strategy 2020–2030 and the supporting 
Climate and Environmental Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020. 
 
62. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental Emergency 
demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to achieve net zero. It 
is not part of development plan or emerging plan policy, but it is a material 
consideration to be considered alongside all other material considerations. 
The need to support the economy is part of the Strategic Environmental 
Assessment for the Emerging Local Plan, as is an assessment of climate 
impacts.  
 
63. The NPPF, Saved Policies 34.ES and 37.ES of the local plan, Draft 
Policies S1, DM2 and DM3 of the Emerging local plan and energy and 
water elements of the adopted Environmentally Sustainable Development 
SPD require development to be sustainable in terms of resource use, 
climate change and energy use. When considering the impact of climate 
change, the proposed development is not expected to be directly impacted 
by the potential effects of climate change and is expected to have a 
negligible impact on the climate as a result of the development or its use.  
 
64. Equalities Implications 
 
65. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality 
duty. Section149 states:- 

- A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to 
the need to: 
a. eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
b. advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
c. foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 

34



66. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the 
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups. It is 
considered that this application does not raise any equality implications. 
 

67. Conclusion 
 
68. The proposals are considered to be acceptable and are therefore 
recommended for approval subject to conditions laid out above.  
 
 

 

35



This page is intentionally left blank



BHH – Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice and Hound Local Area Committee 
 
Thursday 3 March 2022 
 
NOTE: This report relates to a consultation request on an application 
that has been submitted to, and will be determined by, Hampshire 
County Council.  The purpose of this report is to set out Eastleigh 
Borough Council’s response to the consultation.   
 
Reference Number: CS/22/92277 (HCC application ref. HCC/2021/0787) 
Case Officer: Rebecca Altman 
Received Date: 18 January 2022 
Site Address: Hamble Airfield, Hamble 
Applicant: Cemex UK Operations Ltd 
Proposal: Proposed extraction of sand and gravel, with restoration to 

grazing land and recreation using important inert restoration 
materials, the erection of associated plant and infrastructure 
and the creation of a new footpath and access onto Hamble 
Lane.   
 

Recommendation:  
 

 

It is recommended that: 
 

1. The Council responds to Hampshire County Council’s consultation with 
an objection to the Cemex application and asks Hampshire County 
Council’s Regulatory Committee to refuse permission.  
 

2. The content of this report is agreed as supporting evidence for the 
Council’s objection.   
 

3. The Council reserves the right to give further formal and material views 
on the matter in response to any further information from the developer 
(Cemex) and / or Hampshire County Council. 
 

4. In the event of Hampshire County Council’s Regulatory Committee 
granting permission, recommend the mitigations detailed in this report 
to be included as conditions to any permission.  
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary and purpose of the report  
 

1. The Council received notification on 18th January 2022 of an 
application by Cemex to remove minerals from the former Hamble 
Airfield site, which is allocated in Hampshire County Council’s 
(HCC’s) Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 as a potential future site for 
sharp sand and gravel extraction.  

 

37

Agenda Item 10



2. The Council objects to this application for the reasons set out in this 
report.   

 
3. Eastleigh Borough Council is not the planning authority for the 

application.  The application has been submitted to Hampshire 
County Council as the Minerals and Waste Authority and all relevant 
publication and notifications have been dealt with by HCC.  All public 
representations will be submitted directly to HCC.   

 
4. The purpose of this report is to set out Eastleigh Borough Council’s 

response to the consultation, to include supporting information to 
justify the Council’s objection.   

 
5. This report covers the planning matters for objection.  Further matters 

will be covered in a separate report to Cabinet on 24th March 2022, 
with a subsequent response covering the further agreed matters to be 
sent to Hampshire County Council.    

 
Site Characteristics and Character of the Locality 
 

6. The former Hamble Airfield covers an area of approximately 62ha.  It 
ceased its use as an airfield in the 1960s and currently comprises an 
area of scrub vegetation and rough grazing.  The site is privately 
owned but is widely used for public recreation, predominantly dog 
walking.  There is a public footpath (No.1) on the east side of the site, 
which connects Satchell Lane with the residential development north 
of Hamble Lane.  The northern side of the site lies within the Local 
Gap as defined within the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan.   

 
7. The surrounding area is characterised by a mix of residential, rural, 

leisure and commercial uses.  The nearest residential properties are 
located in Hamble Lane, Satchell Lane and those to the south of the 
site on Tudor Close, Astral Gardens and Spitfire Way.  There are also 
two schools close to the site, which are The Hamble School to the 
north and Hamble Primary School to the south-west.  The railway line 
borders the north side of the site, with Hamble Station to the north-
west.   

 
8. There are a number of environmental and heritage designations near 

to the site including the following: 
- Within 300m of the Solent and Southampton Water Ramsar and 

Solent Maritime Special Area of Conservation (SAC); 
- Approximately 400m from the River Hamble, which forms part of the 

Solent and Dorset Coast SPA; 
- Lee-on-Solent to Itchen Estuary Site of Special Scientific Interest 

(SSSI) and Mercury Marshes Local Nature Reserve (LNR) 
(approximately 340m east); 

- Lincegrove and Hackett’s Marshes SSSI (approximately 350m to 
north-east); 

38



- Badnum Copse Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) 
adjacent to the north east corner of the site.   

- Grade II listed Royal Victoria Country Park (approximately 250m to 
west); 

- A number of listed buildings to the west, south-west and south-east 
(over 500m from the site boundary); 

- Two Conservation Areas (Old Bursledon Conservation Area and 
Hamble-le-Rice Conservation Area).   

 
9. Whilst the site itself is not currently subject to any ecological 

designation, it is identified as a potential ecological network 
opportunity in the Hampshire Biodiversity Information Centre (HBIC) 
mapping and is a priority link for biodiversity in the Council’s 
Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP).  

 
10. There is a declared Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) covering 

the area from Windhover Roundabout south on Hamble Lane to the 
junction with Portsmouth Road (A3025) and east along Providence 
Hill (A27).   

 
Description of Application (as submitted to Hampshire County Council) 
 

11. The application is for the extraction of sand and gravel from the 
Hamble Airfield site and subsequent restoration to parkland and 
grazing land.  The key elements of the extraction and restoration 
proposals are summarised below.    

 
12. Extraction: 

 Extraction of approximately 1.7million tonnes of sand and gravel at 
approximately 250,000 tonnes per annum, for a period of up to 7 
years.  The depth of extraction would be up to 7m (average 4.5m).  

 Works to be carried out in 7 phases, starting on the northern side of 
the site.  

 New access to be created from Hamble Lane, approximately 260m 
south of the railway line.    

 Plant to be provided on site including aggregate processing plant, 
stocking conveyor, water treatment plant, double weighbridge, site 
offices / welfare units, wheelwash, car parking and cycle parking. 

 Hours of operation from 07:00 to 17:00 Monday to Friday and 07:00 
to 12:00 Saturdays.  Soil stripping and sand extraction to not 
commence until 08:00.  Maintenance of plant and vehicles proposed 
until 19:00 Monday to Friday and 18:00 on Saturdays.   

 Permissive footpath to be put in place from the start of the 
development, from south east corner to north west corner.   

 
13. The extraction would take place using an excavator, shovel loader 

and dump truck with a central conveyor carrying the material to the 
screening plant located at the north of the site.  Material would be 
screened, and the graded aggregates stored in stockpiles to be 
loaded into lorries for delivery off site.   

39



 
14. Restoration: 

 Restoration estimated to take place over a period of 6 years 
following extraction, with a further 1 year required to finalise 
planting.  

 Site to be restored to a mix of lowland acid grassland, lowland 
mixed deciduous woodland, mixed scrub and drainage ponds.  

 Over 1km of additional native hedgerows and over 20,000 trees and 
shrubs to be planted.   

 North eastern corner of site to be restored to an area for permissive 
community access.  

 
15. There would be three main phases of works.  Phase 1 (years 1 to 2) 

would involve extraction only.  Phase 2 (years 3 to 7) would involve 
extraction and infill.  Phase 3 (years 8 to 12) would comprise infill 
only.   

 
16. It is estimated that the extraction phase of the works (years 1 and 2) 

would result in an average of 45 loads of aggregate entering and 
leaving the site daily (90 vehicle movements).  During phase 2, this 
would increase to approximately 144 vehicle movements per day, 
reducing back down to 90 vehicle movements during phase 3.   

 
17. During morning peak times (08:00 to 09:00), the number of HGV 

movements is estimated to be approximately 11 during phase 1 and 
3, and 17 during phase 2.   

 
18. The proposal is classed as a Schedule 2 development under the 

Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2017 (Schedule 2, 2 – extractive industry), and requires 
an Environmental Impact Assessment which forms part of the 
submission.  In addition, the following reports are included in the 
submission documents:  

 Transport Assessment 

 Air Quality Assessment 

 Ecology Surveys and Assessments (bats, breeding and wintering 

birds, hazel dormouse, invertebrates, and reptiles) 

 Habitats Regulations Assessment 

 Noise Assessment 

 Tree survey, constraints plan and impact assessment 

 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment and landscaping 

details 

 Geological report  

 Flood risk assessment 

 Contamination assessment  

 Archaeology Assessment 

 
 

40



Relevant Site History 
 

19. The Borough Council objected to the allocation of the site for mineral 
extraction in 2012.  Grounds for objection related to the significant 
ecological, economic, amenity, transport, road safety and air quality 
issues.   

 
20. The site was subsequently allocated in the Hampshire Minerals and 

Waste Plan (2013) as a potential future extraction site under Policy 
20.   

 
21. In 2016, the Council objected to a pre-application enquiry consultation 

for proposed sand and gravel extraction at the site (ref. Q/16/78595).  
The objection emphasised the Council’s strong view that the site was 
unsuitable for mineral extraction, and noted that insufficient 
consideration had been given to a variety of environmental matters 
including nature conservation, water quality and flow rates, highway 
matters, air quality impact, amenity impact, economic impact and 
heritage impact.   

 
22. There are no planning applications relating to the site.   

 
Policy Context and Designations Applicable to the Site 
 

23. National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
 

24. Section 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states 
that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the 
achievement of sustainable development, which can be summarised 
as meeting the needs of the present without compromising the ability 
of future generations to meet their own needs. 

25. Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system 
has three overarching objectives: economic; social; and 
environmental. These objectives are interdependent and need to be 
pursued in mutually supportive ways, and should be delivered through 
the preparation and implementation of plans and the application of the 
policies in the Framework. 

26. Part 17 of the NPPF sets out the requirement to secure a sufficient 
supply of minerals to provide infrastructure, buildings, energy and 
goods for the country.  However, the NPPF makes it clear in 
paragraph 210(f) that it is necessary to ensure that permitted and 
proposed operations do not have ‘unacceptable adverse impacts on 
the natural and historic environment or human health’.  Paragraph 
211 of the NPPF further notes that when determining applications for 
mineral extraction, great weight should be given to the benefits of 
extraction including the economy, but point (e) reiterates that it is also 
necessary to ensure no adverse impacts on the natural and historic 
environment, human health or aviation safety, and take account of the 
cumulative effect of multiple impacts from sites in the locality.  Point 

41



(f) of paragraph 211 also requires restoration and aftercare to be 
provided at the earliest opportunity and carried out to a high standard.   

 
27. Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013) 

 
28. The Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (HMWP) was adopted in 

2013 and covers the period up to 2030.  It aims to deliver sustainable 
minerals and waste development in Hampshire, to supply sufficient 
minerals to support the economy, whilst protecting the environment 
and community from the impacts of such development.  

 
29. Policy 15 of the HMWP requires sand and gravel resources to be 

safeguarded against sterilisation by non-minerals development, 
unless prior extraction takes place. 

 

30. Policy 16 aims to safeguard minerals infrastructure from development 
which would unnecessarily sterilise that infrastructure.  This is seeking 
to ensure that development does not encroach /impact on the 
operation of minerals sites.   

 

31. Policy 17 sets the overall target of land won extraction at 1.56 mtpa.   
 

32. The HMWP also includes policies aimed at protecting the countryside, 
ensuring the highest standards of design, operation and restoration, 
and protecting Hampshire’s communities, including public safety and 
amenity.  Policy 12 relates specifically to the requirement to manage 
traffic impacts.     

 
33. The safeguarded sand and gravel sites are set out within Policy 20 of 

the Plan.  This includes 13 current and permitted sites, 2 existing site 
extensions and 5 new sand and gravel extraction sites, including 
Hamble Airfield.  Appendix A provides further details on the specific 
constraints and considerations relating to Hamble Airfield, including: 

 Location close to Solent and Southampton Water Special 
Protection Area (SPA) and Ramsar Solent Maritime Special Area 
of Conservation (SAC); 

 Potential impact on roosting and foraging areas used by bird 
species of the nearby SPA and Ramsar; 

 Need to protect Lee on Solent to Itchen Valley Estuary Site of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI); 

 Safeguarding of adjacent public rights of way (Footpath 1); 

 Maintenance of existing informal recreational use; 

 Protection of local businesses and amenity of local residents; 

 Protection of water quality and recharge of groundwater and 
surface water; 

 Ensuring safe and satisfactory access and managing impact on 
peak flows; 

 Consideration of traffic issues including school traffic, and traffic 
congestion. 

 

42



34. It is stated that the site would be restored to a combination of grazing, 
nature conservation, open space, public access and woodland.   

 
35. The HMWP notes in paragraph 2.34 that: ‘The spatial strategy for the 

future supply of aggregates will centre on using local land-won sand 
and gravel resources that can be worked without significant impacts 
to the environment, communities or economy’.  However, it also 
highlights some of the issues with mineral extraction in parts of 
Hampshire, noting that: ‘The south of Hampshire is a densely 
populated and a heavily developed area but has significant underlying 
sand and gravel resources which are close to the markets they serve.  
However, mineral workings in these areas can present problems for 
local communities, particularly lorry traffic associated with extraction 
in locations such as Hamble and Hythe’.   

 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) Saved Policies: 
 

36. Within the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review, the Hamble Airfield 
site is located within the countryside, with the northern part forming 
part of the designated Local Gap under Policy 3.CO.  The boundary 
vegetation surrounding the site is also identified under Policy 20.CO 
for landscape improvements.    

 
Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 
 

37. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 was submitted by the 
Council to the Planning Inspectorate on 31st October 2018 with 
hearings in public having commenced in November 2019 and 
concluded in early 2020. The Council subsequently received the 
Inspector’s feedback and recommended action points on the plan in 
April and May 2020. On 25 June 2020, the Council’s Cabinet resolved 
to progress the examination on the basis of the main modifications 
outlined in the Inspector’s letter and action points and/or any other 
main modifications which may be necessary. 

 
38. The Council’s Planning Policy Team subsequently prepared further 

evidence and drafted the main modifications in response to each of 
the Inspector’s letters and points and the Inspector has also held an 
additional hearing in January 2021 in relation to Mercury Marina. 
Following on from this, the Inspector has now finalised the main 
modifications for public consultation and the Council has also 
prepared modifications to the policies map and proposed additional 
modifications. A report of the Planning Policy Senior Specialist was 
considered at Cabinet and Full Council on 27 May 2021 which 
recommended approval of the modifications proposed for public 
consultation. 

 

39. Consultation on the Main Modifications took place between 9th June 
and 21st July 2021, and adoption of the Plan is anticipated in mid 
2022.   

43



 
40. Policy HA3 of the emerging Plan relates specifically to Hamble Airfield 

and states that if permission is granted for the extraction of sand and 
gravel and takes place, the site shall be restored in accordance with 
the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan to be retained as an area of 
accessible countryside and open space.  The restored land shall 
comprise grazing, public access and outdoor recreation facilities.   

 

41. Other relevant policies include the following: 

 S1 (Sustainable Development) 

 S7 (Development in the Countryside) – development should 
avoid adverse impacts, including on biodiversity and landscape 
(and recognising the need not to sterilise mineral resources) 

 S8 (Settlement Gaps) – development should not diminish the 
physical extend and / or visual separation of settlements, and not 
have an urbanizing effect detrimental to the character of the 
countryside or separate identify of adjoining settlements.  

 S12 and DM13 (Highways) – the Council will work with the 
Highway Authority and developers to minimise congestion; 
development should not have a significant detrimental impact on 
the highway and will be required to implement mitigation 
measures.  

 DM1 (General Development) – development should not have an 
unacceptable impact on residential amenity and should be 
compatible with surrounding uses.  

 DM11 (Nature Conservation) – development to protect, conserve 
and enhance all biodiversity designations and networks 
(commensurate with the status of the designation) and seek a 
net gain in biodiversity.  
 

42. The Hamble Parish chapter of the emerging Local Plan identifies that 
Hamble Lane is one of the most congested in the Borough and that 
the most pressing issues include the future of Hamble Airfield and 
traffic.   

 
Representations 
 

43. Public representations for the application are being submitted directly 
to Hampshire County Council as the planning authority for the 
application.   

 
44. Two representations from members of the public have been received 

to Eastleigh Borough Council, raising concerns about impact on 
traffic, public safety, noise, pollution and contamination, flood risk and 
impact on wildlife.  The respondents have been advised to submit 
their comments directly to Hampshire County Council.   

 
Eastleigh Borough Council Consultation Responses 
 
Ecologist 

44



 
45. Objection.  Insufficient evidence to assess the likely effectiveness of 

the mitigation to conclude that the project would not have a significant 
impact on the Solent National Site Network, contrary to the Habitat 
Regulations 2019.  The following specific areas of concern are noted: 

 It is considered that the ecological status of the site has been 
underestimated; 

 Concern about the certainty of proposed mitigation and 
restoration plans for reptiles and bird populations; 

 Lack of a detailed assessment of potential recreational impact on 
the nearby SPA through displacement of current recreational 
users of the site to the coast. 
 

46. The detailed response from the Ecologist can be viewed here and is 
summarised below.   

 
47. The site lies within close proximity to a number of statutory 

designated sites (refer to list in paragraph 8).  The site also lies 
around 1km from Hamble Common, which is a matrix of coastal 
heathland, acid grassland, woodland, creeks and shoreline and is 
subject to a considerable amount of visitor pressure.   

 
48. The baseline ecological survey work submitted to HCC have all been 

undertaken in line with accepted industry standard guidelines.  It is 
noted that updated winter bird surveys are still ongoing, but it is 
unlikely that the results would materially change the assessment of 
the impacts of the scheme.  

 
49. The majority of the site comprises grassland and scrub and there are 

two significant species rich native hedgerows along a portion of the 
northern and eastern site boundaries.  Other habitats include small 
areas of regenerating broad-leaved woodland along the western 
boundary in places and scattered trees across the site.  

 
50. The habitats on site are of importance for breeding birds and reptiles: 

 Birds - the ecological surveys assess the site as being of local 
importance for birds.  There was no evidence of waders (other 
than a single bird) using the site and no evidence that the site is 
functionally linked to the coastal SPA sites.   

 Reptiles - there are common lizard and slow worm present on 
the site, the populations of which could potentially be 
exceptional.   

 Bats - a minimum of seven species of bats were recorded during 
site surveys and the site is considered to be of County 
importance for bats.   

 Invertebrates – the site is assessed to be locally important for 
invertebrates.   
 

51. It is considered that the site would qualify as a Site Importance for 
Nature Conservation under HBIC’s recently updated ‘criteria for the 

45

file:///C:/Users/rebeccaa/Downloads/Ecologist%20comments.pdf


section of Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINCs) in 
Hampshire, October 2021’, due to the presence of a rich mosaic of 
habitats and species.  The impacts of the development should 
therefore be considered in the context of Policy DM11 of the emerging 
EBC Local Plan.    

 
52. Direct impacts from the proposal would include: 
 

 Phased loss of c.60ha of grassland/scrub matrix of SINC quality; 

 Phased loss of habitat supporting potentially ‘exceptional’ reptile 
population; 

 Phased loss of breeding habitat for SINC quality bird 
assemblage; 

 Phased loss of habitat supporting at least three BAP invertebrate 
species.  
 

53. Indirect impacts on the Solent and Hamble Estuary sites: 

 Direct land take; 

 Increased recreational disturbance of wintering birds (via 
displacement from the site); 

 Increased recreational disturbance of breeding birds; 

 Disturbance of wintering birds from quarrying activities; 

 Hydrological changes e.g., contamination of surface water, 
foul water, flood risk and water abstraction; 

 Air quality impacts; 

 Dust generation.  
 

54. The submitted information does not appear to include any formal 
assessment of the current nature and levels of recreational use of the 
site, including where visitors have come from.  However, it is 
understood that the site is subject to significant use for recreation, 
albeit that it is privately owned.  It therefore currently absorbs 
recreational uses that would otherwise be occurring elsewhere, such 
as the coastal areas.  Whilst the proposal includes retention of a 30m 
wide buffer zone for walkers, this will not offer the same recreational 
potential as the 60ha currently available.   

 
55. The Concept Recreation Plan proposes a much smaller proportion of 

the site will be available for recreation post-operation.  Whilst this is 
supportable in terms of the benefits it would bring to the on-site 
biodiversity; the concern is that it will have the long-term impact of 
diverting recreational use to the coast.   

 
Other matters – air quality, dust, noise and hydrology: 
 

56. The submitted information determines no significant effects on Solent 
Sites as a result of air quality, dust, noise or hydrological changes.  
These matters may need to be revisited depending on responses 
from other consultees.  

46



 
Mitigation and enhancement: 
 

57. Broadly supportive in ecological terms alone with the ambitions and 
type of habitats to be created, restored and enhanced.  However, 
more work and consideration is needed around the provision for 
particular species groups including reptiles and birds. For reptiles, it 
will be crucial to maintain populations while work is ongoing and 
ensure that restored habitat is available and suitable when required.  
For birds, the post-excavation site should be aiming to secure an 
overall gain for breeding bird species given its current importance.   

 
58. Securing on-going management plans, responsible authorities and 

land ownership post extraction are issues that need resolution.   
 

Biodiversity net gain: 
 

59. The biodiversity net gain (BNG) calculation does not meet the Defra 
Metric rules.  A revised BNG calculations may be necessary. 
 

Sustainable Transport Planner 
 

60. Holding objection – insufficient information.  
 

61. Hamble Lane has long been acknowledged as suffering from severe 
congestion in both morning and evening peak periods and therefore 
additional vehicle movements are likely to have a disproportionate 
impact on journey time delay and queue length.  

 
62. The Transport Assessment considered impacts of the development 

on traffic volumes at the site access and Hound Road and Satchell 
Lane junctions but does not include any consideration of the impact 
on junctions further north, including Portsmouth Road and the 
Windhover Roundabout.  

 
63. Traffic count surveys were undertaken in 2016 and 2017.   

 
64. The Transport Assessment has focused on AM and PM peak hour, 

but this falls outside of the development peak.  
 

65. No details of site surveys used to estimate trip generation have been 
provided.  Without further details of the traffic surveys it is not possible 
to determine if vehicle movements generated by the site have been 
adequately assessed.   

 
66. The additional traffic from the development would have a detrimental 

impact on air quality in the Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and 
the Transport Assessment does not identify measures to minimise or 
mitigate the impact.   

 

47



67. The TA states that the development will increase the annual average 
daily HGV traffic between 10% and 30% between 2030 and 2034.  In 
addition to increased pollution, HGV’s pose a greater risk to 
vulnerable road users such as pedestrians and cyclists, result in less 
attractive walking/ cycling environments and greater concerns 
regarding road safety.   

 
Recommendations: 
 

 Full traffic survey data and further detail on the methodology used to 
determine trip rates for the site is required to ensure that the site 
impact on the surrounding highway network can be assessed 
appropriately.   

 
Environmental Health Officer  
 

68. Objection.  The Pollution Team is unable to ascertain from the 
information provided that potential significant adverse impacts from air 
pollution and noise will be avoided, and that adverse impacts will 
otherwise be minimised to acceptable levels.  

 
69. The detailed response from the Pollution Team can be viewed here 

and is summarised below.   
 

Summary: 
 

70. The Transport Assessment predictions regarding vehicle movements 
are a vital input to air pollution modelling and noise assessment, and 
its importance should not be underestimated.  It is recommended that 
an agreed traffic assessment is used for the purposes of air pollution 
modelling and noise impact assessment.   

 
71. Residential dwellings are located around the site to the west, south 

and east.  Most vehicle movements are understood to pass through 
the Hamble Lane AQMA at the top of Hamble Lane, which was 
declared due to exceedances of UK national target levels of nitrogen 
dioxide due to emissions from road traffic.   

 
72. Given the nature of the activities proposed and proximity of sensitive 

receptors and the increased traffic / HGV flows, there is a clear 
potential for noise and air pollution impacts including particulate 
matter and nitrogen dioxide.  The duration of several years or more 
will feel permanent and occupy a significant chunk of life.   

 
73. With regard to contamination, whilst there is some important 

information missing, the information does indicate that historic land 
contamination is present on site.  However, as the development is of 
low sensitivity in land contamination terms, no objection is raised on 
this matter, provided that appropriate site assessments and 
mitigations are secured by condition should permission be granted.   

48

file:///C:/Users/rebeccaa/Downloads/Environmental%20Health%20Comments.pdf


 
74. The Pollution Team disagrees with the robustness of the technical 

assessments undertaken.  Key concerns relate to loss of amenity and 
harm from: 

 Air pollution from heavy lorry emissions in the AQMA; 

 Noise pollution from powered mechanical equipment; 

 Noise pollution from heavy lorries delivering on site; 

 Noise pollution from heavy lorries using local roads; 

 Air pollution from windblown sand and waste fines (dust).  
 

75. There are many uncertainties behind the noise and air quality 
information in the Environmental Impact Assessment.  Specific 
queries relate to: 

 The background or baseline condition of the environment (noise 
surveys carried out in 2018 and therefore not reflective of the 
situation in 2022); 

 Time of the day and day of the week of noise impact; 

 Fluctuation in sand production, stock keeping or piling and 
quantity of waste received in time; 

 Seasonal and weather conditions and effects of more extreme 
weather events; 

 The quantity of dust and particulate matter that will be received 
by residents and dwellings.  The EIA does not quantitatively 
predict dust emissions and impact to dwellings and there has 
been no localised site monitoring of wind; 

 How agile and transparent the monitoring and audit will be; 

 The health risk to occupants and those with underlying health 
conditions.   

 
Recommendations:  

 
76. The Pollution Team has put forward a number of recommendations 

for further work and / or mitigation, to include: 
 

 Updated sound measurements should be taken to get a more 
accurate understanding of background sound levels.  

 Extended public consultation should take place to better understand 
the impact on residents.  

 Monitoring and audit and community engagement should take place 
throughout the life of the development. 

 Request quantitative dust and particulate modelling to inform 
decision making, implementation of mitigation, monitoring and audit.   

 Recommend conditions requiring an appropriate contaminated land 
site assessment and agreement of mitigation.   

 
Landscape Officer  
 

77. The proposals are not intrinsically in conflict with the countryside and 
gap policies because the site is acknowledged in the Council’s Local 

49



Plans as being allocated for mineral extraction.  Although the 
proposals would have a medium-term impact on the designations, in 
the long term the land would retain its function as open and free from 
development.  Subject to appropriate design and mitigation of impacts 
during the operational phase, the temporary proposals could, in 
principle, be accommodated in accordance with the countryside 
policies.  

 
78. The Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) methodology, 

assessment and conclusions are thorough, well considered and 
reasonable, but some points are raised for further consideration: 

 The LVIA has underestimated the landscape character impacts 
during the works and this should be re-examined, to include 
assessment of the life impacts on residents close to the site.  

 Concern about the proposed design of the landscape buffer 
bunds, which would look highly unnatural and engineered.  A 
more sensitive approach to mitigation is advised, with a softer, 
more convex bund design.  

 There is some confusion on the Restoration Section drawings 
and whether the bunds are proposed to be removed once works 
are completed, which would be the preferred solution.    

 Section plans of the active works should be provided.  
 

79. Other recommendations: 

 A detailed drawing on the proposed permissive path should be 
provided to ensure it is safe and accessible to all; 

 Should the application be approved, it would be imperative to set 
out a timetable for restoration that is clear and enforceable, 
including a maintenance plan for the duration and following 
completion.   

 
Built Heritage Consultant 
 

80. No objection.  The proposal is temporary, albeit for some years, and 
will not affect the setting of any listed buildings or conservation areas.  
The nearest heritage asset is the northernmost part of the Hamble 
Conservation Area, known as Crowsport, which is some distance 
away.  As Crowsport is on sloping ground facing east (i.e., away from 
the site), and given the distance and intervening built estate and 
vegetation, there is not likely to be any adverse visual effect.   

 
Tree Consultant 
 

81. Objection to loss of trees at access point.  
 

82. The site is largely tree free, with significant trees only on the site 
boundaries. Save for the trees at the access point and G4, all other 
trees on the site appear to be retained and protected.  For the most 
part, trees are given good buffers to the proposed bund.   

 

50



83. Trees to be removed - There is confusion over the species of trees to 
be removed (T5, T6, T7 and G4).  No objection would be raised to the 
removal of G4.  The group is not significant and individual tree loss 
within the group would not be significant from an amenity perspective, 
subject to compensatory planting. However, objection would be raised 
to loss of trees T5, T6 and T7 for the proposed access.  It is 
appreciated that there are many aspects that feed into the access 
location, but from an arboricultural and amenity perspective, the 
chosen site is relatively impactful.  The nature of Hamble Lane would 
be significantly altered with the removal of these three trees.  The 
applicant has not suitably demonstrated that they have explored other 
access options.  The tree report is also a little vague, e.g., it does not 
provide details regarding tree pruning around the entrance.   

 
84. Footpath and other works – most of the proposed footpath on the east 

and northern parts of the site is beyond the root protection areas 
(RPAs) of the trees and thus not impactful.  The only area of potential 
conflict appears to be on the northern boundary where the path 
appears to go through G7.  However, there would appear to be no 
significant trees in this area.   

 
85. Summary: 

 Whilst the report is a little vague it does demonstrate that the 
vast majority of trees can be retained and protected.  

 No arboricultural objection to the general proposal.  

 Objection to removal of three trees to create access.  
 

Policy Officer 
 

86. Eastleigh Borough Council was and is strongly opposed to the 
allocation of the Hamble Airfield site for sand and gravel extraction in 
the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan.  It is acknowledged that this 
Plan has now been adopted and forms part of the development plan, 
and so the principle of the allocation has been established by the 
Hampshire authorities.  

 
87. The adopted Minerals and Waste Plan, supported by the emerging 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan, does not simply allocate the site for 
sand and gravel extraction, it requires careful design, layout, 
operation, management and restoration of the site.  The appropriate 
planning mechanisms should be in place to ensure this is achieved in 
accordance with the adopted development plan and emerging Local 
Plan, otherwise the planning application should be refused.   

 
88. Key issues will include minimisation and management of traffic in a 

congested area, the careful protection of the amenity of Hamble-le-
Rice and nearby communities along Hamble Lane, and the careful 
restoration of the site.  With regards to the latter, whilst not a 
requirement for this proposal, consideration should be given to how in 
meeting the requirements for restoration as set out in the Plan, the 

51



site could serve as suitable alternative natural greenspace (SANG), to 
achieve multiple benefits from the open space created.   

 
89. In relation to traffic, in finding the Minerals and Waste Plan sound 

(including this site allocation), the Inspector was provided evidence 
that there could be up to 60 two-way HGV movements per day, 
judging this to be an insignificant increase in the number and 
frequency of HGV movements on Hamble Lane.  It is noted that the 
applicants Transport Assessment indicates that during peak years of 
operation there would be 72 two-way movements, which is 20% 
greater than the upper limit on which the Inspector based his decision 
in 2013.  The baseline traffic levels will also have increased since 
2013.  At the least this emphasises the importance of minimising trips 
where possible.   

 
90. Hampshire County Council’s report as Transport Authority regarding 

improvements on Hamble Lane (2019), identifies that Hamble Lane is 
heavily congested with the potential to improve the situation being 
limited.  It notes that there is a clear need for improvements to 
address existing problems and background growth, that additional 
development would compound the problems and that until at least the 
improvements to the northern section of Hamble Lane are 
implemented, further development along Hamble Lane would be 
inappropriate from a traffic perspective.  Whilst the Hamble Lane site 
is an existing rather than further allocation, the effect of the report is to 
emphasise the importance of minimising / managing traffic from the 
proposal.  In addition to minimising overall trips where possible, the 
operation should avoid or minimise as far as possible trips and peak / 
sensitive times, noting that peak / sensitive times on Hamble Lane 
reflect standard peak times and also school starting and finishing 
times and factory shift patterns.  Minimise as far as possible should 
not simply be based on operational considerations, but a reasonable 
balance between mineral operational and transport / safety / amenity 
concerns.  

 
91. New minerals infrastructure has the potential to impact significantly on 

existing residential areas.  The Minerals and Waste Safeguarding in 
Hampshire SPD (2016) sets a ‘Minerals and Waste Consultation 
Area’ with a 250m buffer around minerals infrastructure in rural areas.  
This is a consultation area and so does not mean there should 
automatically be a buffer as wide as 250m between mineral workings 
and adjacent residential areas.  However, it does indicate that if 
buffers are less than this, then even further care is needed in the 
design / operation of the minerals site to ensure the appropriate level 
of mitigation.   

 
Economic Development Officer 
 

92. Cemex cites five principle economic benefits in its proposal: supplying 
the local construction industry with material; creating local jobs; 

52



creating indirect spend in the local area through these new 
employees; paying business rates; and paying a national aggregate 
levy.  Of these, the locally sourced supply of construction material and 
business rates revenues are the most compelling. The employment 
creation is low and the likely local spend correspondingly low whilst 
the national aggregate levy does not necessarily return to the local 
area.  Increased travel movements on a single access road that 
already suffers from congestion is likely to lower the productivity of 
local commuters.  on balance, the economic disadvantages appear to 
outweigh the benefits.     

 
SUMMARY OF MAIN AREAS OF CONCERN 

  
93. The following summary relates to matters that are within the remit of 

Eastleigh Borough Council to comment on.  There will be a variety of 
other matters relevant to the application that will be considered by 
statutory consultees such as the Environment Agency, Natural 
England and Southern Water, with their comments being provided 
directly to Hampshire County Council.   

 
Policy principle  
 

94. Eastleigh Borough Council acknowledges that the site is allocated as 
a potential future minerals extraction site within Policy 20 of the 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan.  However, the Policy makes it 
clear that any proposals for extraction at the site need to take account 
of a variety of environmental and technical matters, with appropriate 
mitigation secured where impacts cannot be overcome.  It is also 
noted that the proposal is for the extraction of more minerals than 
envisaged in the Policy allocation, and is therefore likely to generate 
impacts beyond those originally considered when the allocation was 
agreed.   

 
95. It is also noted that the Hamble Airfield site is one of 5 potential new 

extraction sites included in Policy 20.  Having reviewed the 
background information set out within the submitted details (EIA non-
technical summary and Planning Statement), EBC is not satisfied that 
a proper assessment of alternative sites has been undertaken in 
terms of considering less environmentally sensitive options.  EBC is 
not convinced that the locational benefits of securing minerals close to 
markets in south east Hampshire would outweigh the significant 
environmental issues of extraction at the site.  

 
Local economy impacts 

 
96. Whilst the applicant has referred to a number of potential economic 

benefits of the development, EBC would counter that the job creation 

and local spend would be limited and the national aggregate levy 

would not necessarily return to the local area.  Increased traffic 

53



congestion would also negatively impact local businesses.  EBC 

considers that the economic disadvantages outweigh the benefits.   

 
Highway implications 
 

97. The increased level of traffic, particularly HGV’s, generated by the 
proposed works is a significant concern of EBC, both in relation to 
highway capacity and safety, and pollution / air quality.  There are two 
schools in close proximity to the site and any increase in traffic and 
congestion could have serious implications for pedestrian safety.  
There are also concerns that increased traffic congestion would 
impact on emergency vehicle access to the local area, and on the 
ability of local businesses to operate effectively.  A number of local 
businesses rely on Hamble Lane for the efficient operation of their 
services, and some have shift and delivery patterns that would not 
necessarily correspond to normal peak traffic times, which needs to 
be taken into account.  

 
98. As detailed in the comments of the Sustainable Transport Officer, 

there are specific concerns about the lack of analysis of the impact of 
additional traffic on surrounding road junctions, and queries about the 
methods used to determine trip rates.  Without clarification on these 
points, it cannot be determined that the impact of traffic from the 
development has been properly assessed.  Related issues of 
increased pollution and impact on air quality are covered separately in 
this report.   

 
99. EBC would also like to refer Hampshire County Council to a recent 

appeal decision relating to proposed residential development at the 
GE Aviation Site, Kings Avenue, Hamble-le-Rice (appeal ref. 325559, 
decision dated 15th January 2021).  In dismissing the appeal, one of 
the key matters considered by the Inspector was that of highway 
impacts on Hamble Lane and nearby junctions.  The Inspector notes 
within his assessment that ‘Hamble Lane is subject to significant 
congestion at peak times, with a number of junctions experiencing 
capacity problems, particularly nearer to the M27 from Portsmouth 
Road northwards’. The inspector concluded that the development 
would result in increased queuing times at the Tesco Roundabout and 
Portsmouth Road junctions, which would be considered a ‘severe’ 
impact when compared to the baseline situation.  Although 
consideration was given to the potential to mitigate impacts through 
contributions towards HCC’s Hamble Lane improvement works, the 
Inspector raised concerns about the availability of funding and timing 
of the improvements.  This appeal decision therefore emphasises the 
importance of fully and properly assessing transport impacts and 
mitigation measures, and EBC does not consider that these matters 
have been satisfactorily addressed in relation to the Hamble Airfield 
proposals.   

 

54



100. In addition to the comments received from the Council’s Sustainable 
Transport Officer, EBC has commissioned Systra Ltd Transport 
Consultants to carry out an independent review of the Transport 
information submitted with the application.  Some specific matters that 
EBC is seeking further clarification on include: 

 The County Council’s position on development in Hamble Lane in 
terms of whether additional development can be accommodated 
without capacity improvements;  

 The timing and accuracy of the traffic count data; 

 The lack of assessment of junction capacity and impacts; 

 Potential impact of changes to the highway code; 

 Impact on other users of the highway (e.g., pedestrians, horses) 
 

101. An update on the outcomes of the Systra Assessment will be provided 
as an update at the Planning Committee and will also be included in 
the subsequent report to Cabinet on 24th March 2022.   

 
Pollution – air quality and noise 

 
102. From the submitted information, EBC is unable to determine that 

significant adverse impacts from air pollution and noise will be 
avoided, or that adverse impacts would otherwise be satisfactorily 
mitigated.    

 
103. As detailed in the response from the Council’s Environmental Health 

Officer, EBC has a number of questions relating to the information 
used to assess air quality and noise impacts.  Most significantly, there 
is concern about whether the Transport Assessment provides an 
accurate representation of traffic impact, and therefore whether the 
related air quality impacts have been properly assessed.  There is 
also no quantitative assessment of dust emissions and the resulting 
impact on dwellings.  This would be fundamental to assessing the 
amenity impact on local residents.     

 
104. In relation to noise, there is concern that the surveys used to 

determine the baseline environment are out of date and do not 
accurately reflect the current position, and that the assessments do 
not adequately consider impacts throughout the day.      

 
Amenity impact and public health 
 

105. Having regard to the concerns outlined within this report, EBC is of 
the opinion that the impact of the proposed works on local residents 
and businesses has been inadequately assessed and 
underestimated.  Impacts would be wide ranging and would last for at 
least a 13-year period, which is a significant period of time in the 
lifetime of residents.  The fundamental concerns relate to impacts of 
increased air pollution from additional traffic and from works at the site 
(i.e., dust / particles), noise impacts, visual impacts and loss of 
recreational space.  Increased pollution can have significant impacts 

55



on the long-term health and wellbeing of local residents, particularly 
those with underlying health conditions, and this is a significant 
concern.  Based on the information submitted to HCC, EBC considers 
that the development would be harmful to local amenity and should 
not be permitted.   

 
Ecology and nature conservation including impact on SPAs 
 

106. Eastleigh Borough Council is concerned that a fundamental issue 
relating to the potential for increased recreational pressure on nearby 
coastal sites has not been properly assessed within the application 
submission.  Given the extent of public use of the land (predominantly 
by dog walkers), the potential diversion of recreational pressure onto 
more environmentally sensitive coastal areas is a significant concern 
and one which requires detailed assessment in order to comply with 
the Habitat Regulations.    

 
107. In relation to protected species, whilst EBC raises no objection to the 

methodologies used in the submitted surveys, it is considered that the 
ecological value of the site has been underestimated, particularly in 
relation to birds and reptiles.   

 
Tree impact 
 

108. EBC objects to the proposed removal of three trees to create the site 
access.  In relation to arboricultural impact, the loss of these trees 
would be impactful, altering the visual nature of Hamble Lane.  EBC 
does not consider that sufficient information has been provided to 
demonstrate that other access locations have been fully explored 
from an arboricultural perspective.   

 
Landscape impact  
 

109. Whilst the principle of mineral extraction followed by restoration could 
meet the general objectives of EBC’s landscape policies if carried out 
sensitively, based on the information submitted there are concerns 
about the content of the LVIA and the design of the proposed 
screening bunds. The bunds as proposed would appear overly 
engineered and unnatural and would need to be redesigned to 
provide a more natural appearance in order to prevent harm to the 
landscape character of the area during the operational phase of 
development.   The concern regarding the LVIA is that the overall 
landscape impacts have been underestimated and limited 
consideration has been given to the impacts on local residents.   

 
Drainage and flood risk 
 

110. Matters relating to drainage and flood risk (including impacts on the 
water table and pollution from water run-off), will be considered by 
Hampshire County Council’s Flood and Water Management Team, 

56



the Environment Agency and Southern Water, who will be responding 
directly to HCC.  At the time of writing this report, only the Flood and 
Water Management Team’s response was available to view and it is 
noted that they have requested further information in order to assess 
the acceptability of the drainage strategy.  EBC would request that full 
consideration is given to all comments and recommendations raised 
by these consultees.   

 
Contaminated land  
 

111. EBC notes that there is further information required to assess land 
contamination, but this could potentially be addressed via condition 
should planning permission be given.   

 
Heritage  
 

112. EBC has no significant concerns with respect to the impact of the 
development on nearby listed buildings and Conservation Areas.  
EBC would support the recommendations of the County’s 
Archaeologist (response to HCC dated 8th February 2022), in 
requiring further information to fully assess the potential 
archaeological impact.     

 
Climate change  

 
113. In July 2019, the Council declared a Climate Change and 

Environmental Emergency. In doing so it agreed, among other things, 
to: (a) put in place measures to ensure the Council’s own operations 
and functions achieve carbon neutrality by 2025; (b) work with 
partners to aim for all projects and services delivered in the Borough 
to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030; (c) ensure that the Council’s 
procurement policy recognises carbon neutrality as one of its primary 
considerations; and (d) recognise the urgency of action to mitigate 
and adapt to climate change in every decision taken by the Council. 
This is underpinned by the Climate and Environment Emergency 
Strategy 2020–2030 and the supporting Climate and Environmental 
Emergency Action Plan – Update June 2020. 

  
114. The declaration of the Climate Change and Environmental 

Emergency demonstrates a strong commitment from the Council to 
achieve net zero. It is not part of development plan or emerging plan 
policy, but it is a material consideration to be considered alongside all 
other material considerations. The need to support the economy is 
part of the Strategic Environmental Assessment for the Emerging 
Local Plan, as is an assessment of climate impacts.  

 
115. The NPPF, Saved Policies 34.ES and 37.ES of the local plan, Policies 

S1, DM2 and DM3 of the Emerging local plan and energy and water 
elements of the adopted Environmentally Sustainable Development 
SPD require development to be sustainable in terms of resource use, 

57



climate change and energy use. When considering the impact of 
climate change, the proposed development is not expected to be 
directly impacted by the potential effects of climate change and is 
expected to have a negligible impact on the climate as a result of the 
development or its use. 

 
Equalities implications  
 

116. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2020 created the public sector 
equality duty.  Section 149 states: 
 A public authority must in the exercise of its functions, have due 

regard to the need to: 
a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and 

any other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
b. Advance equality of opportunity between persons 

who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it; 

c. Foster good relations between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it.  
 

117. When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the 
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected 
groups.  It is considered that this consultation response does not raise 
any equality implications.   

 
CONCLUSION 
 

118. Eastleigh Borough Council objects to the proposal for mineral 
extraction at Hamble Airfield for the reasons detailed in this report, 
summarised as follows: 

 Insufficient justification for mineral extraction at Hamble Airfield 
given the significant environmental impacts; 

 Inadequate assessment of highway impacts, notably in terms of 

predicted traffic generation, increased traffic congestion and 

junction capacity, and resulting implications for highway and 

pedestrian safety and the local economy; 

 Insufficient information to assess pollution, noise and air quality 

impacts and effects on the health and wellbeing of local 

residents and businesses;  

 Lack of assessment of the impact of displaced recreational 

activity on protected coastal areas, and concern that the 

ecological value of the site has been underestimated; 

 Objection to loss of trees to create access; 
 Poor design of landscape buffer bunds and associated visual 

impacts.  

.   
119. From the information submitted, EBC is not satisfied that the 

proposed extraction of minerals at the site can be undertaken without 

58



significant impacts on the local environment in relation to ecology, 
pollution, traffic impact and local amenity. 

 
120. It is requested that should new information be received by HCC in 

relation to any of the matters outlined within this response, EBC 
should be formally reconsulted to allow further review and comment.     

 
 
FURTHER RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

121. Should this application progress, EBC would recommend that the 
following additional information is requested from the applicants to 
allow for more detailed assessment of the proposals: 

 Further assessment of options for alternative extraction sites.   

 Review and response to detailed queries raised by EBC’s 

Pollution Team. 

 Updated Noise Assessment to include updated sound 

measurements for a more accurate understanding of background 

noise levels. 

 Quantitative dust and particle modelling.   

 Extended public consultation, to include a forum, to better 

understand the impact of the development on local residents.  

 Updated Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment to include 

further consideration of the landscape impacts in relation to local 

residents. 

 Re-design of the screening landscape bunds, to achieve a softer 

more convex and natural design.   

 Section plans of the active works phase of development to better 

assess the landscape impacts.  

 Detailed drawings of the proposed permissive path to ensure it is 

safe and accessible to all. 

 Further information to justify the position of the proposed access 

from an arboricultural perspective.  

 Clarification on the species of all trees to be removed and pruning 

proposals around access.  

 Provision of full traffic survey data and further details of the 

methodology used to determine trip rates.  Surveys of the traffic 

levels at similar minerals and waste sites would be recommended 

to determine accurate trip rates.    

 Clarification of the methodology used for calculating biodiversity 

net gain.  

 Detailed assessment of the potential impacts of increased 

recreational pressure on nearby coastal sites from diversion of 

activities from the application site, during the operational phases of 

development and after completion of restoration.   

59



 Provision of updated wintering bird survey data.  

 
122. Notwithstanding the objections raised by EBC, in the event that 

Hampshire County Council were to recommend permission for the 
proposed works, Eastleigh Borough Council would wish to ensure that 
the following matters are addressed through appropriately worded 
conditions or obligations: 

 Provision and monitoring of all measures required to mitigate 

adverse impacts of the development.   

 Restoration of the site in line with policy requirements and 

provision of long-term management and maintenance.   

 On-going monitoring and public engagement in relation to pollution 

control mitigation throughout the operational phase of 

development (including restoration phases). 

 Detailed timetable for the restoration works, to include 

maintenance plans for the duration of the works and following 

completion.  

 Provision of contaminated land site assessment and agreement of 

any necessary mitigation measures.  

 Provision of a net gain in biodiversity including habitat for breeding 

birds.   

 Detailed timetable for habitat restoration works to ensure existing 

species populations are maintained and new habitat provided at 

appropriate times.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



Club

Sports College

Ppg Sta

Community

Hamble

11 2

1

Sunnyhurst

7

Irenic

Gas Gov

Wessex

Tanks

Bungalow

Gas Gov

Wessex Manor

13

47

41

Works

Hamble Court Business Park

1

23

16

5

25

4

56

31

46

38

1

10

13

20

Primary School

Hamble

108

Club

102

84

House

ESS

Playing Field

El

Sub Sta

Play Area

Path

Path

Path (um)

Und

Ward Bdy

FF

FB

U
nd

Def

Def

0.91m RH

Def

SL

Signal Light

B 3397

BR
O

AD
 W

AY

H
A

M
B

LE
 LA

N
E

VERDON AVENUE

Track

Loading Gauge

Stone

LB

20.4m

20.3m

17.7mYouth

Eastwood House

Hamble

Shelter

Station

Rosegarth

12
17

110a

Swanhild

110

Sprocmar

2

Recreation Ground

Pavilion

Mount Pleasant

34

32

24

2

67

59

39

51

21

11

86

Works

Wessex

Skatepark

Badnam Copse

Gardens

Car Park

Allotment

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

Path (um
)

0.91m RH

0.91m RH

0.91m
 R

H

FF

D
ef

MP 0.25

MP 0.50

LA
N

E

H
A

M
B

LE
 L AN

E

TU
TO

R C
LO

SE

SATC
H

ELL

Track

Track

Stone

FB

LB

Footbridge

Stone

17.3m

21.0m

19.5m

21.0m

Hamble Airfield CS/22/92277

Scale:  1:2449

Department:

Date:

Planning

21/02/2022

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

61



This page is intentionally left blank



Alexandra

31c

10

Games Court

34a

32b

36

The Boathouse

60

73

75

46

32

48

69

54a

9

57

72

12
9

18

1

11
9

7

11
a

60a

Capstan Court

11a

45

18

32

Firs

16

47

30

42100

25

4

31
2 4

5

5

2

22

1

62

11

31

46

1

33

10

11

20

15

8

44

5

2

El
Sub Sta

Play Area

El

BARTON DRIVE

OAKWOOD WAY

LA
NE

SA
TC

H
EL

L

BA
R

TO
N

 D
R

IV
E

FL
O

W
ER

S 
CL

O
SE

VERDON AVENUE

SYDNEY AVENUE

L Twr

16.4m

14.3m

13
1c

12

Planners

Court

1 to 5

40

Upper Creek Mews

36b

6

15

14a

18

33

25

48

10

69

89

67

71

30

10
7

25

54

27

El Sub Sta

67

14

73

7

14
1

6

7

54

13

9

80

12
1

13
1

15
1

14

19
28

14

7

15
11

5

1

1

13

47

31

21

35a35

Works

Hamble Court Business Park

23

Three

63

20

63

8

1

32

52

114

34

1

38

56

53

22
20

43

33

3

39

41

33

16

25
a

31

64

80

78

23

19

46

55

13

24

41

10

5

20

31

9

37

10

32

11

37

21

2

21

9

108
102

84
27

25

18

1

4

Sub Sta

70a

24

26

22

2

El

Sub Sta

Path

Path

Path (um)

DEA
NFI

ELD
 C

LO
SE

SPITFIRE WAY

H
AM

B
LE

 LAN
E

BARON ROAD

BARTON DRIVE

AC
O

RN
 C

O
UR

T

SP
IT

FI
R

E 
W

AY

ASTRAL GARDENS

ASTRAL GARDENS

BE
AU

LI
EU

 R
OAD

THE CLOSE

PARK ROYAL

Path (um)

L Twr

LB

7.0m

20.4m

13.2m

14

1 to 9

10

Tank

22

Folly

53

31d

13
1b

3

34b

4

32a
34

36a

Depot

24

5

Pippins

70

30

52

62

20

99

93

57

83

87

95

16

38

51 45

56

62

14

River House

21

17

19

46

9

45

19

19

85

95

Cottage

Caerglas

1

14

21

74

8

94

11
1

6

1

96

17 9 26

1

Ri
ve

nd
ell

13

17

2

41

20

2

23

44

23

25

2

45

34

Club

25

7

2

30

30

23

90

4

32

24

2

12

67

17

55

28

29

17

15

3

23

20

6

8

28

19

12

69

25

21

27

68

21

13

4

59

39

51

38

29

40

51

Pavilion

21

13

11

1

16

4

30

39

26

38

7

23

1

48

2

10

38

6

37

86

Works

29

23

17

50 54

El

48

6

21

9

4

22b
22a

1

El
Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

Sub Sta

Path

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

P a
th

 ( u
m

)

W
ALK

ER P
LA

CE

SATCHELL LANE

CERDIC MEWS

SYDNEY AVENUE

MERCURY GARDENS

VERDON AVENUE

TU
TO

R 
CLO

SE

LB

TCB

LB

Tank

L Twr

L Twr

12.5m

13.7m

17.3m

20.3m

8.5m

Hamble Airfield CS/22/92277

Scale:  1:2449

Department:

Date:

Planning

21/02/2022

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Planning Application - F/22/92329 - Bailey Cottage, Station Road, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 8AA
	F_22_92329

	8 Planning Application - H/21/91822 - 7 Oakhill Terrace, Bursledon, Southampton, SO31 8AS
	10 Planning Application - CS/22/92277 - Hamble Airfield Consultation
	CS_22_92277 Part 1
	CS_22_92277 Part 2


